
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation 
District Regular Board Meeting 

January 22, 2025 
8:15 am 

    611 Broadway Ave. Suite 10B 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE

III. AGENDA 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker
 

  Mark Miller, DNR 
          * Doughnut and Door Prize Resolution for 2026 Wabasha County Forestry Day– Board Action 
  

V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration 

 
A. 2026 Data Practice Policy for Data Subjects 
B. 2026 Data Practice Policy for Members of the Public 
C. 2026 Request for release of data to government agency 
D. 2026 Request for release of data 
E. 2026 Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District Data Practices Policy 

Fee Schedule 
 

i. Contracts 
A.  

ii. Contract Amendment 
A. Gary & Mary Lou Hager Amendment# 1 to Contract# 25-CC-10 to change 

the Install Date to 4/30/2026 from 12/31/2025.  Practice 314 Brush 
Management.  
 

iii. Vouchers 
A. Voucher payment for Richard Heil for Contract# 25-CC-1 in the amount of 

$298.70.  Practice 314 Brush Management. 
(Funding source – FY25 Conservation Contracts) 

  WAGZ – Continuous CRP Incentives: 
B. Jacob Suckow Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP6, $250.00 and Voucher 

payment for $250.00. 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 WAGZ) 

C. Phyllis Sprick Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP5, $250.00 and Voucher 
payment for $250.00. 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 WAGZ) 
 
 

WINLAC – Continuous CRP Incentives: 
D. Gorman Creek LLC Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP9, $1,000.00 and 

Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 



(Funding source – FY25 WinLaC)
E. Gertrude B. Schurhammer Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP4, $1,000.00 

and Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
(Funding source – FY25 WinLaC) 
 

F. Alan Jostock Voucher payment for Contract# 2024WAGZ-WC-02 in the 
amount of $1,237.50 for 27.5 acres Cover Crops. 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 WAGZ) 

G. Alan Jostock Voucher payment for Contract# 2024WAGZ-WC-03 in the 
amount of $628.00 for 15.7 acres Cover Crops. 
(Funding source – FY24 -FY25 WAGZ) 

H. Hunter Farms LLC Voucher payment for Contract# 2024WAGZ-WC-13 in 
the amount of $500.00 for Woodland Stewardship Plan. 
(Funding source – FY24 (WAGZ) Watershed Based Funding) 
  

iv. Grants  
A.  FY 2026 State of MN BWSR Buffer Implementation Program Grant Agreement. 

Grant ID P26-0146 2026-Buffer Law (Wabasha SWCD) for $20,000.00.  
Expiration date: December 31, 2028. 
 

F. State or MN Joint Powers Agreement between State of Minnesota, acting through 
its Commissioner of Agriculture (State) and Wabasha Soil & Water Conservation 
District (Governmental Unit) for MAWQCP.  Agreement effective date January 1, 
2026, and expiration date December 31, 2027. 

G. Wabasha SWCD MAWQCP Building Lease Agreement for Greg Klinger from County 
of Olmsted to use portion of the building at 1188 50th St. SE Rochester, MN for 
office space for the MN Dept of Agriculture.  Lease period is January 1, 2026, 
through December 31, 2026.  Monthly payment $129.28  
 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. December 18, 2025, Meeting Minutes – Board Action 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 

A. December District Financial Statements
Included for your review 

B. December Program Record 
 

VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 
A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $49,285.51- Board Action 
B. Note: Southeast Service Cooperative – Health Insurance January premium paid 

1/2/2026 $5,234.34 automatic withdrawal. 
 February 2026 premium, automatic withdrawal on February 1, 2026, $5,234.34. 
 
 
 
 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
D. NRCS Report – Christina Taylor –  



E. Natural Resources Technician Report– Katelyn Abts – (In the packet)
F. Soil Health/Nutrient Management Tech Report – Deanna Pomije (in the packet) 
G. Conservation Planning & Outreach Technician – Ella Jurgerson (In the packet) 

 
H. BWSR Report –  
I. Other agencies –  

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas)
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Election of SWCD Board Officers for 2026 – Board Action

i. Chairman - 
ii. Vice Chairman - 
iii. Secretary - 
iv. Treasurer –  

 
B. 2026 Committee Appointments – Board Action 

i. Personnel Committee (Lynn, Chet) 
ii. Finance Committee (Sharleen, 
iii. Whitewater JPB (Lynn) 
iv. Zumbro 1W1P (Dag) 
v. WinLac 1W1P (Lynn) 
vi. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB (Dag) 
vii. County Board Meeting Representative (Sharleen) 

 This is a member of our board who will go to county meetings  
 

C. 2026 Board Policy, Operating Rules, Guidelines and Bylaws – Board Action/          
Each Sign separate last page attached. 

D. ELink Grant Reporting Signature Authority Resolution 01222026-1 – Board Action 
E. Designation of Official Newspaper Resolution 01222026-2 (The Lake City Graphic) – 

Board Action 
F. Designation of Official Bank Depositories Resolution 01222026-3 – Board Action 
G. Designation of Signatories for Bank Accounts Resolution 01222026-4 – Board Action 
H. Per Diem rates $125.00 and Mileage .725 for 2026 Resolution 01222026-5 – Board 

Action 
I. Approve Annual Resolutions Authorizing Terri Peters Signature Authority for: 

i. Resolution 01222026-6      Approve Grant agreements from BWSR as they 
come in. -Board Action 

ii. Resolution 01222026-7      Approve Contracts and Amendments, including 
Cover Crops and Well Sealing Contracts and Extension Signature Authority - 
Board Action 

 
 

iii. Resolution 01222026-8      Approve AgBMP Loan Applications up to 
$200,000.00 -Board Action 

iv. Resolution 01222026-9      Approve Designating Signature Authority to Terri 
Peters for RCPP batching before monthly board meeting. -Board Action 

 
J. Resolution to Terminate the Whitewater Joint Powers Board and Terminate and 

Withdraw from the Whitewater Joint Powers Board Agreement – Board Action 



K. Wabasha SWCD Sponsorship for Cow Calf Days February 12, 2026, in Oronoco at 
Rossman Farm in the amount of $100.00 payable to the University of Minnesota - 
Board Action 

L. Agreement between the Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District and 
the Olmsted County Soil and Water Conservation District for the Minnesota 
Agricultural Water Quality Certification Program (MAWQCP) through MDA. 
Term January 1, 2026, to December 31, 2027 – Board Action 

M. Employee Handbook with Updates -Board Action 
N. Approve Daniel H. Miller Contract# 2026WinLaC-Wab001 in the amount of $350.00 

for Woodland Stewardship Plan – Board Action 
(Funding source – FY26 WinLaC) 

O. Approve Allen & Janet Rahman Contract# 2025WAGZ-WC-01 in the amount of 
$500.00 for Woodland Stewardship Plan – Board Action 
(Funding source – FY26 (WAGZ) Watershed Based Funding) 

P. January RCPP Batching – Board Action 
 

Q. Upcoming Events 
i. Cow Calf Days – Thursday, February 12th 
ii. Wabasha Forestry Day – Friday, February 13th

iii. February 16, Washington’s Birthday – Offices Closed 
iv. February 26th Regular Board Meeting 

 
 

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Dag  
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Dag 
E. County Board Meeting – Sharleen 

 
 

XIII. Adjourn – Board Action 



THE DOUGHNUT AND DOOR PRIZE RESOLUTION

WHEREAS WABASHA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT HAS 
BEEN A PARTNER IN WABASHA COUNTY FORESTRY DAY SINCE 1977

AND WHEREAS THE 49th ANNUAL WABASHA COUNTY FORESTRY DAY 
WILL BE IN KELLOGG ON FEBRUARY 13, 2026

AND WHEREAS ATTENDENCE TO THIS FANTASTIC EDUCATIONAL EVENT 
MAY BE JEPRADIZED WITHOUT FREE DOUGHNUTS

AND WHEREAS DOUGHNUTS WITHOUT COFFEE IS LIKE PIE WITHOUT ICE 
CREAM

AND WHEREAS A HEALTHY OPTION OF FRUIT, MILK, AND JUICE WILL 
MAKE THIS EVENT EVEN BETTER

AND WHEREAS DOUGHNUTS, COFFEE, FRUIT, MILK, AND JUICE ARE IN 
FACT THE LEAST EXPENSIVE PART OF THIS FANTASTIC EVENT

AND WHEREAS THE BOARD WILL LOOK INCREDIBLY GOOD KEEPING WITH 
A 48 YEAR TRADITION BY PROVIDING REFRESHMENTS IN 2026

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WABASHA SWCD WILL PROVIDE 
DOUGHNUTS, COFFEE, FRUIT, MILK, AND JUICE FOR THE 2026 WABASHA 
COUNTY FORESTRY DAY. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT IN THE INTEREST OF LOOKING EVEN 
BETTER, THE WABASHA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT WILL 
DONATE 100 TREES FOR DOOR PRIZES. 



January 1, 2026 
1 

 

2026 

 Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
Data Practices Policy  

Fee Schedule 
This fee schedule is not exhaustive since the Wabasha County SWCD Supervisors may adopt or 
change fees in various formats that may not be reflected here. 

SERVICE Fee 
Copies (8.5x11 or 8.5x14) $0.25 per side 
Copies (11x17) $1.00 each 
Copies on DVD Actual cost of time and materials based on the 

billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the DVD 

Copies on CD Actual cost of time and materials based on the 
billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the CD 

Copies on flash drive or by email or other 
electronic means  

Actual cost of time and materials based on the 
billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the copies 

Commercial Use Fee Pursuant to MN Statute 13.03 Subd 3 (d), we 
reserve the right to charge a fee of $50.00 for 
public data which is deemed to have 
commercial value. 

 

Copy Costs – Members of the Public 

This government entity charges members of the public for copies of government data.  These 
charges are authorized under Minnesota Statues, section 13.03, subdivision 3 (c). 

The District does not charge for copies if the cost is less than $5.00. 

Multiple requests within the same business day are considered a single request in determining the 
whether the minimum charge has been met. 

You must pay for the copies and data before we will give them to you. 

For 100 or Fewer Paper Copies – 25 cents per page 

100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal-size paper copies cost 25¢ for a one-sided 
copy, or 50¢ for a two-sided copy. 



January 1, 2026 
2 

 

Most Other Types of Copies – Actual cost 

The charge for most other types of copies, when a charge is not set by statute or rule, is the actual 

cost of searching for and retrieving the data and making the copies. 

Commercial Use-$50.00 

Pursuant to MN Statute 13.03 Subd 3 (d), we reserve the right to charge a fee of $50.00 for public 

data which is deemed to have commercial value. Any fee charged must be clearly demonstrated  

by the government entity to relate to the actual development costs of the information. The  

responsible authority, upon the request of any person, shall provide sufficient documentation  

to explain and justify the fee being charged. 

 

In determining the actual cost of making paper or electronic copies, we factor in employee time, the 

cost of the materials onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, DVD, etc.), and mailing costs (if 

any).  If your request is for copies of data that we cannot reproduce ourselves, such as photographs, 

we will charge you the actual cost we must pay an outside vendor for the copies.   

The cost of employee time to search for data, retrieve data, and make copies is based on billable 

time of the employee doing aforementioned work based on current billing found using the Board of 

Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) billing rate calculator.  

Copy Costs – Data Subjects 

This government entity charges data subjects for copies of government data.  These charges are 
authorized under Minnesota Statues, section 13.04, subdivision 3. 

The District does not charge for copies if the cost is less than $5.00. 

Multiple requests within the same business day are considered a single request in determining the 
whether the minimum charge has been met. 

You must pay for the copies and data before we will give them to you. 

Actual Cost of Making the Copies 

In determining the actual cost of making copies, we factor in employee time, the cost of materials 
onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, DVD, etc.), mailing costs (if any).  If your request is 



January 1, 2026 
3 

 

for copies of data that we cannot reproduce ourselves, such as photographs, we will charge you the 
actual cost we must pay an outside vendor for the copies. 

The cost of employee time to make copies is the billable rate of the employee doing the work 
requested as determined by the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Billing Rate Calculator. 

 



Minnesota Department of Administration, Information Policy Analysis Division · www.ipad.state.mn.us ·  
Adopted for WABASHA COUNTY SWCD  January 1, 2026  

 

 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation 
District Data Practices Policy 

Members of the Public 
 
 

SUMMARY - Fee Schedule 
 
This fee schedule is not exhaustive since the Wabasha County SWCD Supervisors may 
adopt or change fees in various formats that may not be reflected here. 
 
 

SERVICE Fee 
Copies (8.5x11) $0.25 per side 
Copies (11x17) $1.00 each 
Copies on DVD $10.00/DVD 
Copies on CD $10.00/CD 
Commercial use fee $50.00/request 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

http://www.ipad.state.mn.us/


Policy required by Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 2(b).  Page 2 

Data Practices Policy for Members of the Public 
 
 
 

Right to Access Public Data 
 
The Government Data Practices Act (Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13) presumes that all government 
data are public unless a state or federal law says the data are not public.  Government data is a term 
that means all recorded information a government entity has, including paper, email, DVDs, 
photographs, etc. 
 
The Government Data Practices Act also provides that this government entity must keep all government 
data in a way that makes it easy for you, as a member of the public, to access public data.  You have the 
right to look at (inspect), free of charge, all public data that we keep.  You also have the right to get 
copies of public data.  The Government Data Practices Act allows us to charge for copies.  You have the 
right to look at data, free of charge, before deciding to request copies.   
 

How to Make a Data Request 
 
To look at data or request copies of data that this government entity keeps, make a written request. 
Make your request for data to the appropriate individual listed in the Data Practices Contacts on page 4.  
You may make your request for data by written request using the data request form on page 6.   
 
If you choose not to use the data request form, your request should include: 
 
• that you, as a member of the public, are making a request for data under the Government Data 

Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13; 
• whether you would like to look at the data, get copies of the data, or both; and  
• a clear description of the data you would like to inspect or have copied. 
• The more specific a request is in scope, the more expedited the process is likely to be in responding 

to a request. 
 
This government entity cannot require you, as a member of the public, to identify yourself or explain the 
reason for your data request.  However, depending on how you want us to process your request (if, for 
example, you want us to mail you copies of data), we may need some information about you.  If you 
choose not to give us any identifying information, we will provide you with contact information so you 
may check on the status of your request.  In addition, please keep in mind that if we do not understand 
your request and have no way to contact you, we will not be able to begin processing your request.   
 

How We Respond to a Data Request 
 
Upon receiving your written request, we will work to process it.   
 
• If we do not have the data, we will notify you in writing as soon as reasonably possible.   
• If we have the data, but the data are not public, we will notify you in writing as soon as reasonably 

possible and state which specific law says the data are not public.   
• If we have the data, and the data are public, we will respond to your request appropriately and 

promptly, within a reasonable amount of time by doing one of the following: 



Policy required by Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 2(b).  Page 3 

o arrange a date, time, and place to inspect data, for free, if your request is to look at the 
data, or 

o provide you with copies of the data as soon as reasonably possible.  You may choose to pick 
up your copies, or we will mail or fax them to you.  If you want us to send you the copies, 
you will need to provide us with an address or fax number.  We will provide electronic 
copies (such as email or CD-ROM) upon request if we keep the data in electronic format.   
 
Information about copy charges is on page 5.  
We also will arrange for you to pre-pay for the copies. 

 
If you do not understand some of the data (technical terminology, abbreviations, or acronyms), please 
let us know.  We will give you an explanation if you ask.   
 
The Government Data Practices Act does not require us to create or collect new data in response to a 
data request if we do not already have the data, or to provide data in a specific form or arrangement if 
we do not keep the data in that form or arrangement.  (For example, if the data you request are on 
paper only, we are not required to create electronic documents to respond to your request.)  If we agree 
to create data in response to your request, we will work with you on the details of your request, 
including cost and response time.  
 
In addition, the Government Data Practices Act does not require us to answer questions that are not 
requests for data. 
 

Requests for Summary Data 
 
Summary data are statistical records or reports that are prepared by removing all identifiers from 
private or confidential data on individuals.  The preparation of summary data is not a means to gain 
access to private or confidential data. We will prepare summary data if you make your request in writing 
and pre-pay for the cost of creating the data.  Upon receiving your written request – you may use the 
data request form on page 6 – we will respond within ten business days with the data or details of when 
the data will be ready and how much we will charge.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy required by Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 2(b).  Page 4 

Data Practices Contacts 
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
 
 
 
Responsible Authority 
Terri Peters 
District Manager 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10B 
Wabasha, MN 55981 
(651) 560-2044 
 
 
Data Practices Compliance Official 
Sue Cerwinske 
District Staff 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
Wabasha, MN 55981 
(651) 560-2053 
 
 
Data Practices Designee(s) 
Terri Peters 
District Manager 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
Wabasha, MN 55981 
(651) 560-2044 
 
 
Sue Cerwinske 
District Staff 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
Wabasha, MN 55981 
(651) 560-2053 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Policy required by Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 2(b).  Page 5 

Copy Costs – Members of the Public 
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
 
Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District charges members of the public for 
copies of government data.  These charges are authorized under Minnesota Statues, section 
13.03, subdivision 3 (c). 
 
The District does not charge for copies if the cost is less than $5.00. You must pay for the 
copies and data before we will give them to you. 
 
For 100 or Fewer Paper Copies – 25 cents per page 
100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal size paper copies cost 25¢ for a one-
sided copy, or 50¢ for a two-sided copy. 
 
Most Other Types of Copies – Actual cost 
The charge for most other types of copies, when a charge is not set by statute or rule, is the 
actual cost of searching for and retrieving the data, and making the copies or electronically 
transmitting the data (e.g. sending the data by email). 
 
In determining the actual cost of making copies, we factor in employee time, the cost of the 
materials onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, DVD, etc.), and mailing costs (if 
any).  If your request is for copies of data that we cannot reproduce ourselves, such as 
photographs, we will charge you the actual cost we must pay an outside vendor for the 
copies.   
The cost of employee time to search for data, retrieve data, and make copies is charged at 
the billable rate, as determined by the BWSR Billing Rate Calculator, of the employee doing 
the work.  If, because of the subject matter of your request, we find it necessary for a 
higher-paid employee to search for and retrieve the data, we will calculate the search and 
retrieval portion of the copy charge at the higher salary/wage.      
 
Commercial Use Fee-$50 
 
Agencies have the right to charge an additional fee for public records that they believe have 
a commercial value. This is authorized under MN Statute 13.03 subd 3(d), which reads: 
 
 “(d) When a request under this subdivision involves any person's receipt of copies of public 
government data that has commercial value and is a substantial and discrete portion of or an 
entire formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, process, database, 
or system developed with a significant expenditure of public funds by the government entity, 
the responsible authority may charge a reasonable fee for the information in addition to the 
costs of making and certifying the copies. Any fee charged must be clearly demonstrated by 
the government entity to relate to the actual development costs of the information. The 
responsible authority, upon the request of any person, shall provide sufficient documentation 
to explain and justify the fee being charged.” 



Policy required by Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 2(b).  Page 6 

Data Request Form – Members of the Public 
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
 

 
Date of request: _____________ 
 
 
I am requesting access to data in the following way: 
 
 Inspection        Copies    Both inspection and copies 
 
Note:  inspection is free but we charge for copies when the cost is over $5.00.  
 
These are the data I am requesting: 
Describe the data you are requesting as specifically as possible.  If you need more space, please use the 
back of this form.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact Information 
 
Name: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone number: _______________________ Email address: ____________________________ 
 
You do not have to provide any of the above contact information.  However, if you want us to 
mail/email you copies of data, we will need some type of contact information.  In addition, if we do not 
understand your request and need to get clarification from you, without contact information we will not 
be able to begin processing your request until you contact us.     
 
 
We will respond to your request as soon as reasonably possible.   



Wabasha County SWCD 
Adopted January 1, 2026   
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
Request (to release) from Government 

 
It is necessary for a government entity to release an individual’s private data to an outside entity or person. The entity 
must get the individual’s informed consent because the entity does not have statutory authority to release the data, or the 
outside entity/person was not named in the Tennessen warning. 
 

Explanation of Your Rights 
If you have a question about anything on this form, or would like more explanation, please talk to Terri Peters, 
Responsible Authority or Sue Cerwinske, Data Practices Compliance Official before you sign it. 
 

• You have the right to choose what data we release. This means you can let us release all of the data, some of the data, or none 
of the data listed on this form. Before you give us permission to release the data, we encourage you to review the data listed 
on this form. 

 
• You have the right to let us release the data to all, some, or none of the persons or entities listed on this form. This means you 

can choose which entities or persons may receive the data and what data they may receive. 
 

• You have the right to ask us to explain the consequences for giving your permission to release the data. 
 

• You may give us permission to discuss the data released by this form with the outside entity. If you choose not to give 
permission, you may still allow us to release the data. 

 
• You may withdraw your permission at any time. Withdrawing your permission will not affect the data that we have already 

released because we had your permission to release the data. 
 
 
I, ______________________, give my permission for The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
release data about me to ___________________________ [name of other entity or person] as described on this form. I 
understand that my decision to allow release of the data to_______________________ [name of other entity or person] is 
voluntary. 
 
1. The specific data that The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District may release to 
____________________________[name of other entity or person] are: _______________________[explanation of data]. 
 
2. I understand The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District wants to release the data for this reason: 
___________________________________[explanation of reason for the release]. 
 
3. I understand that although the data are classified as private at The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation 
District, the classification/treatment of the data at __________________________[name of other entity or person] 
depends on laws or policies that apply to________________________________________ [name of other entity or 
person]. [Include other known consequences.] 
 
4. I give The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District permission to discuss the data released by this 
consent form with _______________________Check one.  
 Yes, I give permission. Data will be released and discussed. 
 No, I do not give permission. Data will be released but not discussed. 
 
This authorization to release expires ___________________________. 
 
Individual data subject’s signature _______________________________ Date______________ 
 
Parent/guardian’s signature [if needed] ___________________________ Date______________ 



Wabasha SWCD 
Adopted January 1, 2026  
 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
 

Request (to release) from Individual 
 
 
An individual asks the government entity to release his/her private data to an outside entity or person. 

Because the entity does not have statutory authority to release the data, it must get the individual’s 
written informed consent. 

 
 

Explanation of Your Rights 
 

If you have a question about anything on this form, or would like more explanation, please talk 
to Terri Peters, Responsible Authority or Sue Cerwinske, Data Practices Compliance Official 
before you sign it. 
 
 
 
I, _________________________ give my permission for The Wabasha County Soil and Water 
Conservation District to release data about me to ____________________________ as described 
on this form. 
 
1. The specific data I want The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District to release 
____________________________________________[explanation of data]. 
 
2. I understand that I have asked The Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
release the data. 
 
3. I understand that although the data are classified as private at The Wabasha County Soil and 
Water Conservation District, the classification/treatment of the data at 
______________________[name of other entity or person] depends on laws or policies that 
apply to _______________________[name of other entity or person]. 
 
This authorization to release expires ___________________________. 
 
Individual data subject’s signature _______________________________ Date______________ 
 
Parent/guardian’s signature [if needed] ___________________________ Date______________ 



January 1, 2026 
1 

 

2026 

 Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
Data Practices Policy  

Fee Schedule 
This fee schedule is not exhaustive since the Wabasha County SWCD Supervisors may adopt or 
change fees in various formats that may not be reflected here. 

SERVICE Fee 
Copies (8.5x11 or 8.5x14) $0.25 per side 
Copies (11x17) $1.00 each 
Copies on DVD Actual cost of time and materials based on the 

billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the DVD 

Copies on CD Actual cost of time and materials based on the 
billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the CD 

Copies on flash drive or by email or other 
electronic means  

Actual cost of time and materials based on the 
billing rate for the lowest paid employee that 
can perform the job of creating the copies 

Commercial Use Fee Pursuant to MN Statute 13.03 Subd 3 (d), we 
reserve the right to charge a fee of $50.00 for 
public data which is deemed to have 
commercial value. 

 

Copy Costs – Members of the Public 

This government entity charges members of the public for copies of government data.  These 
charges are authorized under Minnesota Statues, section 13.03, subdivision 3 (c). 

The District does not charge for copies if the cost is less than $5.00. 

Multiple requests within the same business day are considered a single request in determining the 
whether the minimum charge has been met. 

You must pay for the copies and data before we will give them to you. 

For 100 or Fewer Paper Copies – 25 cents per page 

100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal-size paper copies cost 25¢ for a one-sided 
copy, or 50¢ for a two-sided copy. 



January 1, 2026 
2 

 

Most Other Types of Copies – Actual cost 

The charge for most other types of copies, when a charge is not set by statute or rule, is the actual 

cost of searching for and retrieving the data and making the copies. 

Commercial Use-$50.00 

Pursuant to MN Statute 13.03 Subd 3 (d), we reserve the right to charge a fee of $50.00 for public 

data which is deemed to have commercial value. Any fee charged must be clearly demonstrated  

by the government entity to relate to the actual development costs of the information. The  

responsible authority, upon the request of any person, shall provide sufficient documentation  

to explain and justify the fee being charged. 

 

In determining the actual cost of making paper or electronic copies, we factor in employee time, the 

cost of the materials onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, DVD, etc.), and mailing costs (if 

any).  If your request is for copies of data that we cannot reproduce ourselves, such as photographs, 

we will charge you the actual cost we must pay an outside vendor for the copies.   

The cost of employee time to search for data, retrieve data, and make copies is based on billable 

time of the employee doing aforementioned work based on current billing found using the Board of 

Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) billing rate calculator.  

Copy Costs – Data Subjects 

This government entity charges data subjects for copies of government data.  These charges are 
authorized under Minnesota Statues, section 13.04, subdivision 3. 

The District does not charge for copies if the cost is less than $5.00. 

Multiple requests within the same business day are considered a single request in determining the 
whether the minimum charge has been met. 

You must pay for the copies and data before we will give them to you. 

Actual Cost of Making the Copies 

In determining the actual cost of making copies, we factor in employee time, the cost of materials 
onto which we are copying the data (paper, CD, DVD, etc.), mailing costs (if any).  If your request is 



January 1, 2026 
3 

 

for copies of data that we cannot reproduce ourselves, such as photographs, we will charge you the 
actual cost we must pay an outside vendor for the copies. 

The cost of employee time to make copies is the billable rate of the employee doing the work 
requested as determined by the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Billing Rate Calculator. 

 





























INCENTIVE CONSERVATION ACTIVITY REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT 

General Information 
Organization Amendment □ Canceled 

Wabasha SWCD 

Contract Number 

2025WinlaC-Wab-CRP9 
Date(s): Date: 

• 1f contract amended, attach amendment form(s) to this contract. 

Applicant 
Land Occupier Name Address City/State Zip code 

Gorman Creek LLC 1846 Fairmount Ave Saint Paul, MN 55105 

• If a group contract, th,s must be Med and signed by the 1roup spokesperson as designated m the group agreement and the group agreement attached to this form. 

Contract Information 

Page 1 of z 

I (we), the undersigned, do hereby request financial reimbursement to assist with the implementation of the following conservation 

activity(s) listed in section 1. It is understood that: 

1. By entering into this contract, both parties, acknowledge and agree to the rules, regulations, land description, scope and

duration, set forth under (a) _______ (Supporting Contract Number) (copy attached as Exhibit A) which is, in effect, the 

terms of this contract, OR, (b) the conservation activity(s) described below: 

Description of the purpose, location, duration and outcomes that will be achieved as a result of this 

contract: 

Contract Number: 11374 

Sign-up Type: Continuous 

T109, Rl1, Sec 1, Tract 1995, Field 8, Acres 1.5 

Contract: 10-01-2025 to 09-30-2040 

2. This contract will expire 12/31/25, according to exhibit A or the described conservation activity(s).

3. If title to this land is transferred to another party before expiration of the aforementioned life, it shall be the responsibility of

the landowner who signed this contract to advise the new owner that this contract is in force and to notify other parties to the

contract of the transfer.

4. A change in ownership shall not change the terms of this contract.

5. The contract, and terms of the contract, shall be in effect for the period of the contract.

Applicant Signatures 

The land occupier's signature indicates agreement to: 

1. Grant the organization's representative(s) access to the parcel where the conservation activity(s) will be located.

2. Obtain all permits required in conjunction with the installation and establishment of the activity(s).

3. Be responsible for the operation and maintenance prepared for applicable practice(s) by a technical assistance provider or the

operation and maintenance that was prepared under the requirements of a supporting contract (exhibit A) for the conservation

activities applied under this contract.

4. To provide copies of all forms and contracts pertinent to any other state or non-state programs that are contributing funds

toward this activity(s).

September 1, 2023 

















US Department of Agriculture
Natural Resource Conservation Service

Cover Crop 340
November 2018

Version 2

Name:
Address:

Site location:
Section: 14 & 27 Township: 109

% Germ % Purity
Total 
PLS # 

Planted

PLS 
lb/ac

% of full 
Rate

Seeds/ 
sqft

53.0% 98.8% 712.1504 90.1456 164% 37.58

inches

Totals: 90.1456 164% 37.58
inches

Notes and Comments:

Producer Signature Date

I certify that the above information does / does not meet NRCS specifications for design and installation.

Conservationist Signature Date JAA

Alan Jostock Program:
Contract #: 2024WAGZ-WC-03 & WC-02

see notes Contract Item #:
326 Hill St E Hammond MN 55991

Range: 13 Acres Planted: 7.9

Cover Crop Certification Worksheet

Instructions: Document producer's actual cover crop planting information below.  Attach or include photos of the cover crop to this Job Sheet.

Species Total Pounds 
Planted Practice Check Out Conditions

Rye, Winter Cereal 1360 Site Preparation:

NA
-

- no till
- Fertility Used:

-
-

-

-
-

Weed Control (chemical/mechanical):
- Chemical
-

Date Planted: 9/29/2025
-
- Planting Depth: 1

IncorporatedPlanting Method:
-
-
-

Cover Crop Height at 
Termination:

Irrigated: NA

bin run w. rye seed 
Planted T381 flds. 9, 29

No

-
-

Termination Method:
- Herbicide

-

S

ELLA JURGERSON 
(Affiliate)

Digitally signed by ELLA 
JURGERSON (Affiliate) 
Date: 2026.01.14 08:09:42 -06'00'

1-14-2026 2









US Department of Agriculture
Natural Resource Conservation Service

Cover Crop 340
November 2018

Version 2

Name:
Address:

Site location:
Section: 14 & 27 Township: 109

% Germ % Purity
Total 
PLS # 

Planted

PLS 
lb/ac

% of full 
Rate

Seeds/ 
sqft

90.0% 99.7% 2197.283 62.246 113% 25.95

inches

Totals: 62.246 113% 25.95
inches

Notes and Comments:

Producer Signature Date

I certify that the above information does / does not meet NRCS specifications for design and installation.

Conservationist Signature Date JAA

Alan Jostock Program:
Contract #: 2024WAGZ-WC-03 & WC-02

see notes Contract Item #:
326 Hill St E Hammond MN 55991

Range: 13 Acres Planted: 35.3

Cover Crop Certification Worksheet

Instructions: Document producer's actual cover crop planting information below.  Attach or include photos of the cover crop to this Job Sheet.

Species Total Pounds 
Planted Practice Check Out Conditions

Rye, Winter Cereal 2450 Site Preparation:

NA
-

- no till
- Fertility Used:

-
-

-

-
-

Weed Control (chemical/mechanical):
- Chemical
-

Date Planted: 10/30/2025
-
- Planting Depth: 1

IncorporatedPlanting Method:
-
-
-

Cover Crop Height at 
Termination:

Irrigated: NA

boughten Rymin w. rye seed
Planted T381 flds. 11, 12; T636 flds. 3,4,11,16,21

No

-
-

Termination Method:
- Herbicide

-

ELLA JURGERSON 
(Affiliate)

Digitally signed by ELLA 
JURGERSON (Affiliate) 
Date: 2026.01.14 08:08:16 -06'00' 1-14-2026 2



Bags: 56-7 returned= 49 bags * 50# = 2450# Rymin w.rye seed



 

Jostock’s 2025 cover crops, Above – T381 fld. 12, w. cereal rye 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T-636 fld. 11 

















Jen Wahls, Landscape Connections LLC 
Jen Wahls – Landscape Connections LLC 
PO Box 116   Kellogg, MN  55945 
Phone 218-310-9058 
Email   jen.landscapeconnections@gmail.com 

 

 

 

BILL TO   

Hunter Farm LLC 
23257 685th St 
Wabasha, MN  55981 

  

UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 Woodland Stewardship Plan – 127 plan acres  

 
$1,620 

TOTAL $1,620.00 

DUE BY DATE           30 days after receipt 
of invoice 

Thank you for your business! 

INVOICE NO.  STEWARDSHIP PLAN DATE 12/21/25 



Page 1 of 9 

 
 

FY 2026 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF WATER and SOIL RESOURCES 
BUFFER IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

 

Vendor: 0000205683 

PO#: 3000019898 
 

This Grant Agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Board of Water and Soil Resources (Board) and 
Wabasha SWCD, 611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 B, Wabasha MN 55981 (Grantee). 
 

Grant ID Grant Title Awarded Amt 

P26-0146 2026 - Buffer Law (Wabasha SWCD) $20,000.00 

 

Total Grant Awarded: $20,000.00 
 

Recitals 
1. The Laws of Minnesota 2025, Regular Session, Chapter 36, Article 2, Section 6(e) appropriated funds to the Board for the FY 

2026 and 2027 Buffer Implementation Program. 
2. The Board adopted Board Order #25-46 to authorize and allocate funds for the FY 2026  Buffer Implementation Program. 
3. The Grantee has submitted a Board approved work plan for this Program, referenced in 2.1.  
4. The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this Grant Agreement to the 

satisfaction of the Board. 
 

Authorized Representative 
The State’s Authorized Representative is Adam Beilke, Land and Water Programs Supervisor, BWSR, 2118 Campus Drive SE, Suite 
100, Rochester, MN 55904, (507) 766-9820, or his successor, and has the responsibility to monitor the Grantee’s performance and 
the authority to accept the services and performance provided under this Grant Agreement. 
 
The Grantee’s Authorized Representative is:  TITLE /arTitle/ 

      ADDRESS /arAddress/ 

      CITY /arCity/ 

      TELEPHONE NUMBER /arTele/ 

 
If the Grantee’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Grant Agreement, the Grantee must immediately notify 
the Board.  
 

Grant Agreement 
1. Terms of the Grant Agreement. 

1.1. Effective date: The date the Board obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 5. The Board will 
notify the Grantee when this Grant Agreement has been executed.  The Grantee must not begin work under this Grant 
Agreement until it is executed. 

1.2. Expiration date: December 31, 2028 or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever comes first.   
1.3. Survival of Terms: The following clauses survive the expiration date or cancellation of this Grant Agreement: 9. Liability; 

10. State Audits; 11. Government Data Practices; 14. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; 16. Data Disclosure; and 
19. Intellectual Property Rights. 
 

2. Grantee’s Duties. 
The Grantee will comply with required grants management policies and procedures set forth through Minn. Stat. § 16B.97, 
Subd. 4(a)(1). The Grantee is responsible for the specific duties for the Program as follows: 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF

651-560-2044

611 Broadway Ave Ste 10

District Manager

Wabasha



Page 2 of 9 

2.1. Implementation:  The Grantee will implement their Board approved work plan. The work plan will be implemented 
according to the Program Requirements outlined in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated into this Grant 
Agreement. 

2.2. Reporting: All data and information provided in a Grantee’s report shall be considered public. 
2.2.1. The Grantee will submit an annual progress report to the Board by February 1 of each year on the status of Program 

implementation by the Grantee. Information provided must conform to the requirements and formats set by the 
Board.  

2.2.2. All individual grants over $500,000 require a reporting expenditure by July 15 of each year. 
2.2.3. Final Progress Report: The Grantee will submit a final progress report to the Board by February 1, 2029, or within 30 

days of fully expending funds, whichever occurs sooner. Information provided must conform to the requirements and 
formats set by the Board.  

2.2.4. The Grantee will prominently display on its website the Clean Water Legacy Logo and a link to the Legislative 
Coordinating Commission website. 

2.3. Match: The Grantee will provide minimum match required by Exhibit A.  
2.4. Website: The Grantee must clearly post on the Grantee’s website the names of, and contact information for, the Grantee’s 

leadership and the employee or other person who directly manages and oversees this Grant Contract Agreement on behalf 
of the Grantee. 

 
3. Time.  

The Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this Grant Agreement.  In the performance of this Grant 
Agreement, time is of the essence.  

 
4. Terms of Payment. 

4.1. All grant funds will be distributed in one installment promptly after the execution of the Grant Agreement. 
4.2. All costs must be incurred within the grant period. All incurred costs should be calculated or determined before the final 

report is completed or returning funds. 
4.3. Unspent grant funds must be returned within 30 days of the expiration date of the Grant Agreement.  
4.4. Once final reporting has been completed funds may not be re-requested as funds may not be available. 
4.5. The obligation of the State under this Grant Agreement will not exceed the amount listed above. 
4.6. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payments allow the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up 

costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future. 
 

5. Conditions of Payment. 
All services provided by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement must be performed to the Board’s satisfaction, as set forth in 
this Grant Agreement. Compliance will be determined at the sole discretion of the Board’s Authorized Representative and in 
accordance with all applicable federal, State, Board, and local laws, policies, procedures, ordinances, rules, and regulations. The 
Grantee will not receive payment, may be required to repay grant funds, or may have future payments withheld if work is found 
by the Board to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, State, or local law. Costs charged to the grant must be 
direct and necessary to produce the outcomes funded by the grant. Charges to the grant must be itemized and documented. 
Grantee administrative costs must be necessary and reasonable. Grantee is required to account for staff time charged to BWSR 
grants in order to track the expenditure of grant funds and match to ensure the use of the funds is consistent with applicable 
State and BWSR requirements.  

 
6. Contracting and Bidding Requirements. 

6.1. Municipalities, as defined in Subd. 1 of Minnesota Statutes § 471.345, are required to comply with Minnesota Statutes § 
471.345, Uniform Municipal Contracting Law and the following sub-clauses: 

6.1.1. The Grantee and any subrecipients must comply with prevailing wage rules per Minnesota Statutes §§ 177.41 
through 177.50, as applicable. 

6.1.2. The Grantee and any subrecipients must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred by the State of 
Minnesota or the federal government: Suspended and Debarred Vendors, Minnesota Office of State Procurement. 

6.1.3. The Grantee must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of 
its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. 

6.2. Non-governmental organizations, those that do not meet the definition of municipality in 6.1, are required to comply with 
the contracting and bidding requirements in the following sub-clauses: 

6.2.1. Any services and/or materials that are expected to cost $100,000 or more must undergo a formal notice and bidding 
process.  

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 3 of 9 

6.2.2. Services and/or materials that are expected to cost between $25,000 and $99,999 must be competitively awarded 
based on a minimum of three (3) verbal quotes or bids or awarded to a targeted vendor.  

6.2.3. Services and/or materials that are expected to cost between $10,000 and $24,999 must be competitively awarded 
based on a minimum of two (2) verbal quotes or bids or awarded to a targeted vendor. 

6.2.4. The Grantee must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that targeted vendors from businesses with active 
certifications through these entities are used when possible: 

6.2.4.1. State Department of Administration's Certified Targeted Group, Economically Disadvantaged and Veteran-
Owned Vendor List 

6.2.4.2. Metropolitan Council Underutilized Business Program 
6.2.4.3. Small Business Certification Program through Hennepin County, Ramsey County, and City of St. Paul: Central 

Certification Directory 
6.2.5. The Grantee must maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of 

its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. 
6.2.6. The Grantee must maintain support documentation of the purchasing or bidding process used to contract services in 

their financial records, including support documentation justifying a single source bid, if applicable. 
6.2.7. Notwithstanding 6.2.1. – 6.2.4. above, the State may waive bidding process requirements when: 

6.2.7.1. Vendors included in response to competitive grant request for proposal process were approved and 
incorporated as an approved work plan for the grant; or 

6.2.7.2. It is determined there is only one reasonably able and available source for such materials or services and that 
grantee has established a fair and reasonable price.  

6.2.8. The Grantee and any subrecipients must comply with prevailing wage rules per Minnesota Statutes §§ 177.41 
through 177.50, as applicable. 

6.2.9. The Grantee and any subrecipients must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred by the State of 
Minnesota or the federal government: Suspended and Debarred Vendors, Minnesota Office of State Procurement. 

 
7. Assignment, Amendments, Work Plan Revisions, Waiver, and Contract Complete. 

7.1. Assignment. The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this Grant Agreement without the 
prior consent of the Board and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, executed and approved by the same parties who 
executed and approved this Grant Agreement, or their successors in office.   

7.2. Amendments and Work Plan Revisions. Any amendments to this Grant Agreement must be in writing and will not be 
effective until approved and executed by the same parties who approved and executed the original Grant Agreement, or 
their successors in office. Amendments must be executed prior to the expiration of the original Grant Agreement or any 
amendments thereto. All work plan revisions must be documented. The Board reserves the right to require a work plan 
revision or grant agreement amendment for changes in the scope of the grant. 

7.3. Waiver. If the Board fails to enforce any provision of this Grant Agreement, that failure does not waive the provision or its 
right to enforce it. 

7.4. Contract Complete. This Grant Contract Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the Board and the 
Grantee. No other understanding regarding this Grant Contract Agreement, whether written or oral, may be used to bind 
either party. 
 

8. Subcontracting and Subcontract Payment. 
8.1. A subrecipient is a person or entity that has been awarded a portion of the work authorized by this Grant Contract 

Agreement by Grantee. The Grantee must document any subaward through a formal legal agreement. The Grantee must 
provide timely notice to the State of any subrecipient(s) prior to the subrecipient(s) performing work under this Grant 
Contract Agreement.  

8.2. Activities identified in the sub-agreement must fit within the scope of the agreement between the Board and the recipient 
and include shared responsibilities for liability, fund distribution, implementation, and reporting. 

8.3. The Grantee must monitor the activities of the subrecipient(s) to ensure the subaward is used for authorized purposes; is 
in compliance with the terms and conditions of the subaward, Minnesota Statutes § 16B.97, Subd.4 (a) (1) and other 
relevant statutes and regulations; and that subaward performance goals are achieved. 

8.4. During this Grant Contract Agreement, if a subrecipient is determined to be performing unsatisfactorily by the State’s 
Authorized Representative, the Grantee will receive written notification that the subrecipient can no longer be used for 
this Grant Contract Agreement. 

8.5. No sub-agreement shall serve to terminate or in any way affect the primary legal responsibility of the Grantee for timely 
and satisfactory performances of the obligations contemplated by the Grant Contract Agreement. 

8.6. The Grantee must pay any subrecipient in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 16A.1245. 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 4 of 9 

8.7. The Grantee and any subrecipients must not contract with vendors who are suspended or debarred by the State of 
Minnesota or the federal government.  

 
9. Liability. 

The Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the State, its agents, and employees harmless from any claims or causes of action, 
including attorney’s fees incurred by the State, arising from the performance of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee or the 
Grantee’s agents or employees. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Grantee may have for the State’s 
failure to fulfill its obligations under this Grant Agreement. 
 

10. State Audits. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 8, the Grantee’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the 
Grantee or other party relevant to this Grant Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the Board and/or the 
State Auditor, the Attorney General, or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this Grant 
Agreement, receipt and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all State and program retention 
requirements, whichever is later. 
10.1. The books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices of the Grantee and its designated local units of 

government and contractors relevant to this grant, may be examined at any time by the Board or Board’s designee and are 
subject to verification. The Grantee or delegated local unit of government will maintain records relating to the receipt and 
expenditure of grant funds.  

  
11. Government Data Practices. 

The Grantee and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all 
data provided by the State under this Grant Agreement, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the 
release of the data referred to in this clause by either the Grantee or the State. 
 

12. Workers’ Compensation. 
The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. § 176.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage. The Grantee’s employees and agents will not be considered State employees. Any claims that may arise under the 
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence 
of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the State’s obligation or responsibility. 
 

13. Publicity and Endorsement. 
13.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Grant Agreement must identify the Board as the sponsoring 

agency. For purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, 
reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the Program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Grant Agreement. 

13.2. Endorsement. The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services. 
 

14. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. 
Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this Grant Agreement. Venue for all legal proceedings 
out of this Grant Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate State or federal court with competent jurisdiction in 
Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 

15. Termination. 
15.1. The Board may cancel this Grant Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days’ written notice to the 

Grantee. Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services 
satisfactorily performed. 

15.2. The Board may immediately terminate this Grant Agreement if the Board finds that there has been a failure to comply with 
the provisions of this Grant Agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made or that the purposes for which the 
funds were granted have not been or will not be fulfilled. The Board may take action to protect the interests of the State of 
Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already 
disbursed. 

15.3. The Commissioner of Administration may immediately and unilaterally terminate this Grant Contract Agreement if further 
performance under the agreement would not serve agency purposes or performance under the Grant Contract Agreement 
is not in the best interest of the State. 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 5 of 9 

15.4. The Board may immediately terminate this Grant Contract Agreement if it does not obtain funding from the Minnesota 
Legislature, or other funding source; or if funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the 
services addressed within this Grant Contract Agreement. Termination must be by written notice to the Grantee. The 
Board is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of termination. However, 
the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent 
that dedicated funds are available.  
In the event of temporary lack of funding or appropriation, the Board may pause its obligations under this Grant Contract 
Agreement without terminating it. This pause will be for the duration of the lack of funding or appropriation and shall not 
be considered a termination of the Grant Contract Agreement. The Grantee will be notified in writing of the temporary 
pause, and the Grantee’s ability to provide services may be temporarily suspended during this period. The Board will 
provide reasonable notice to the Grantee of the lack of funding or appropriation and shall notify the Grantee once funding 
is restored or appropriated, at which point the provision of services under the Grant Contract Agreement may resume. 
The Board will not be assessed any penalty if the Grant Contract Agreement is terminated due to insufficient funding. The 
Board must provide the Grantee notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the Board’s receiving notice. 
 

16. Data Disclosure. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 270C.65, Subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security number, 
federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to the State, to 
federal and State tax agencies and State personnel involved in the payment of State obligations. These identification numbers 
may be used in the enforcement of federal and State tax laws which could result in action requiring the Grantee to file State tax 
returns and pay delinquent State tax liabilities, if any. 

 
17. Constitutional and Statutory Compliance. 

It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements of the Minnesota Constitution and state statute 
regarding the use of Clean Water Funds to supplement traditional sources of funding. Grantee must meet Clean Water 
Fund expenditure and accountability requirements as defined in Subd.4 of Minnesota Statute § 114D.50. 
 

18. Signage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee to comply with requirements for project signage as provided in Minnesota Laws 2010, 
Chapter 361, Article 3, Section 5(b) for Clean Water Fund projects. 

 
19. Intellectual Property Rights. 

The State owns all rights, title, and interest in all of the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, 
trademarks, and service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant. Works means all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, (whether or not patentable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, 
negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Grantee, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with others in the performance of this 
grant. Work includes “Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, 
photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or 
electronic forms, prepared by the Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, in the performance of this grant. The 
Documents will be the exclusive property of the State and all such Documents must be immediately returned to the State by the 
Grantee upon completion or cancellation of this grant at the State’s request. To the extent possible, those Works eligible for 
copyright protection under the United State Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Grantee assigns all 
right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to the State. The Grantee must, at the request of the State, 
execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the State’s ownership interest in the Works and 
Documents. 

 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 6 of 9 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Grant Agreement to be duly executed intending to be bound thereby. 
 
 
Approved: 
 

 Wabasha SWCD     Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
 /sn1name/                                                                                         /sn2name/                                                                                       
By:     _______________________________________ By:    ____________________________________________   
              
         /sn1/            /sn2/  
           _______________________________________                         ____________________________________________    
                                          (signature)                                   (signature)  
                                 
 
             /sn1title/                                                                                            /sn2title/  
Title: _______________________________________               Title:  ____________________________________________      
 
 /dateSigned1/      /dateSigned2/ 
Date: _______________________________________ Date: ____________________________________________  
  

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF

1/6/2026

District Manager

Terri Peters

1/7/2026

Adam Beilke

Land and Water Programs Supervisor



Page 7 of 9 

Exhibit A 
Grant Program Requirements: 

FY 2026 Buffer Implementation Grant Program  

1. Match 

No match is required. 

2. Grant Work Plan  

A work plan shall be developed in eLINK and must be approved before execution of the grant agreement. The 

work plan shall reflect each eligible activity that will be implemented, a description of the anticipated activity 

outcomes or accomplishments, and grant funding amounts to accomplish each of the activities. 

3. Eligible Activities 

Eligible activities include assistance to support drainage system mapping and map review, landowner outreach, 

landowner technical and financial assistance, equipment purchases, and other buffer law implementation 

activities. Grantee will provide technical assistance, planning assistance and implementation assistance to 

landowners as well as track progress towards compliance in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 103F.48. 

4. Native Vegetation 

Projects that involve vegetation restoration or establishment must use native vegetation and seed and plant 

sources consistent with BWSR’s Native Vegetation Establishment and Enhancement Guidelines, with the 

exceptions listed below. Use of plant species on the Minnesota Noxious Weed List is prohibited for all projects. 

Non-native species used for projects must not pose a risk to native plant communities. The maximum distance 

for sources of herbaceous species seed and plants is 200 miles; and for tree and shrubs seed and plants the 

distance is 300 miles. 

Exceptions 

• Non-native, non-invasive perennial crops, hay crops or forage crops may be used: 

o As part of a drinking water protection strategy in a vulnerable or highly vulnerable DWSMA as 

designated by the Department of Health or in a Township Well Testing high-priority area as 

determined by the Department of Agriculture; 

o In buffers, borders, grass waterways or other areas likely to be exposed to pesticides or part of 

agricultural production; 

o For soil stabilization, erosion prevention and carbon sequestration in an agricultural production 

setting; 

o On fields that will be hayed, grazed or harvested. 

• For the exemptions above, if the project area is under 20 acres in size, the exception may be approved 

by local conservation staff. If the project area is 20 acres or larger, or for any exceptions not listed here, 

grantees must request approval from the BWSR Grant Manager. 

• Cover crops used to improve soil health and/or water quality are allowed without a maximum acreage 

limit. 

• Temporary cover is allowed without a maximum acreage limit when needed to stabilize project sites 

prior to the construction of structural conservation practices. 

• Cultivars of native species may be used in urban stormwater plantings if they accomplish similar or 

greater ecological functions, help achieve aesthetic goals and do not pose an invasive or other 

environmental risk. 

 

5. Allowable and Unallowable Costs 

Allowable costs are costs solely incurred though project activities that are directly related to and necessary for 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 8 of 9 

producing the project outcomes described in the work plan. Grantee is required to account for the staff time 

charged to BWSR grants in order to track the expenditure of grant funds and match to ensure the use of the 

funds is consistent with applicable State and BWSR requirements.  

Unallowable costs include but are not limited to:  

• Bad debts, monetary settlements and judgements, late payment fees, and investment management fees  

• Donations, fundraising, sponsorships, and acknowledgements 

• Entertainment, gifts, prizes, and decorations  

• Alcohol  

• Interest on loans not authorized under state statute 

• Loans of BWSR grant funds  

• Lobbying, lobbyists, and political contributions 

• Merit awards and bonuses  

6. Sub-agreements 

Funds may be distributed to partner(s) through the use of sub-agreements. Activities identified in the sub-

agreement must fit within the scope of the agreement between BWSR and the recipient and include 

requirements for fund distribution, implementation, and reporting.  

7. Technical Quality Assurance 

Practices and projects must meet the following requirements to ensure long-term public benefit: 

• Technical Assistance Provider.  The recipient must designate technical assistance provider(s) that 

have appropriate credentials for investigation, design, and construction.  

• Practice Standards. Practices and projects must use appropriate standards for design, construction, 

effective life, operation, and maintenance.  

• Practice Certification. Technical assistance provider(s) must certify that the practice or project was 

installed or constructed in accordance with the applicable plans and specifications, including 

approved modifications, prior to authorization for payment.  

• Operation and Maintenance. Technical Assistance Provider(s) must prepare an operation and maintenance 

(O&M) plan specific to the site and practice(s) implemented. 

• Periodic Practice/Project Inspection. Inspections shall confirm that the operation and maintenance plan is 

being followed and the project has not been altered or removed. 

8. Project and Practice Assurances 

A written agreement is required to ensure program requirements are met when installing projects and practices 

or providing financial assistance to a land occupier. Project and Practice Assurances must include technical and 

financial obligations and requirements for the installation, operation, and maintenance of the practice or 

project, including a plan for failures or noncompliance. 

9. Providing Financial Assistance to Land Occupiers 

All BWSR funds used by a recipient to provide financial assistance to a landowner or land occupier requires 

adequate project assurances.   

 
Project Application and Agreements 
Work completed prior to the signing of the agreement is not eligible. 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



Page 9 of 9 

Conservation Practice Contract Noncompliance 

Failure to complete, maintain, or repair a conservation practice or unauthorized alteration is considered non-

compliance with an executed conservation practice agreement. If the organization discovers noncompliance, 

they must take action to resolve and notify BWSR.   

10. Grant Management and Reporting 
Eligible activities include local grant administration, management, and reporting that are directly related to and 
necessary for implementing the project or activity associated with the grant. Grantee is required to report on the 
outcomes, activities, and accomplishments. 

Docusign Envelope ID: A09B7358-D2AF-4FAB-936F-53D88EEDA2AF



















Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District 
Regular Board Meeting 

December 18, 2025 
8:15 am 

611 Broadway Ave. 
Suite 10B 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Lynn Zabel, Chair called the meeting to order at 8:19 am 
Supervisors Present: Lynn Zabel, Chair, Sharleen Klennert, Treasurer, Dag Knudsen, 
Member 
Staff Present: Terri Peters, District Manager 
Others Present: Dave Copeland, BWSR, Frank Klennert, Citizen 

   
II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
Terri - agenda change. Move letter P. Watershed Based Continuous CRP Incentives, 
subcategories i., ii., iii from Consent Agenda – iii. Vouchers to New Business Letter F. with 
subcategories i., ii., iii.  WAGZ and WinLaC CRP contracts and vouchers and approval of 
contracts and vouchers before the end of the year. 
Additional contracts WAGZ Letters H., I., J., K., L.  and WinLaC/ Letters D., E., F. G. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the change of CRP Incentives 
from Consent Agenda - Vouchers to New Business letter F. and i., ii., iii with additional 
contracts and vouchers. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration. 

i. Contracts 
A. Nathan & Tina Schumacher Contract# 26-CC-1 in the amount of 

$133.95 for Practice 612 Tree/Shrub Establishment. 
(Funding source – FY26 Conservation Contracts) 

 Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve  
Nathan & Tina Schumacher Contract# 26-CC-1 in the amount of 
$133.95 for Practice 612 Tree/Shrub Establishment. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

ii. Contract Amendments 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

iii. Vouchers 
A. Voucher payment for Kurt Schnell Contract# 2024WAGZ-WC-16 in the 

amount of $3,555.00.  Payment two of a two-year contract for Cover 
Crops-Final. 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 WAGZ) 

B. Voucher payment for Huneke Dairy Inc/Paul Huneke Contract# 
25-SHD-15 in the amount of $4,378.50.  Payment 1 of a 1-year 
contract for Cover Crops – Final. 
(Funding source – FY25 Soil Health Delivery) 

C. Voucher payment for Paul Kruger Enterprises LLC Contract# 25-SHD-13 
in the amount of $2,620.00.  Payment 1 of a 1-year contract for Cover 
Crops – Final. 
(Funding source – FY25 Soil Health Delivery) 

D. Voucher payment for Contract# 79-2-27 in the amount of $3,360.00 
for 340 Cover Crops. Payment 1 of 1-year contract – Final. 
(Funding source – FY25-FY28 Soil Health RCPP) 

E. Voucher payment for Hyde Park Holsteins Contract# DWP-26 in the 
amount of $1,000.00 for U of M Nitrogen Fertilizer recommendation 
for Corn – Final. 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 DWP Karst (TKR) 

F. Voucher payment for Contract# 79-2-31 in the amount of $4,730.00 
for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 4-year contract. 
(Funding source – FY25-FY28 Soil Health RCPP) 

G. Voucher payment for Kevin Petersen Contract# 25-SHD-16 in the 
amount of $3,000.00 die 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 1-year 
contract – Final. 
(Funding source – FY25 Soiil Health Delivery) 

H. Voucher payment for Contract# 79-2-32 in the amount of $4,530.00 
for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 4-year contract. 
(Funding source – FY25-FY28 Soil Health RCPP) 

I. Voucher payment for Contract# 79-2-36 in the amount of $4,800.00 
for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 1-year contract – Final. 
(Funding source – FY25-FY28 Soil Health RCPP) 

J. Voucher payment for Mike Graner Contract# 23-CWF-WIC-4 in the 
amount of $20,749.02 for Practice 528 Prescribed Grazing.  
(Funding source – FY23 West Indian Creek Watershed Restoration and 
Protection)  

K. Voucher payment for Contract# 79-25RCPP-12 in the amount of 
$5,000.00 for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 4-year contract. 
(Funding source – FY25-FY28 Soil Health RCPP) 

L. Voucher payment for Benjamin Klein for Contract# 25-SHD-8 in the 
amount of $1,475.00 for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 1-year 
contract. 
(Funding source -FY25 Soil Health Delivery) 

M. Voucher payment for Eric Klein for Contract# 25-SHD-9 in the amount 
of $1,000.00 doe 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 of 1-year contract. 
(Funding source – FY25 Soil Health Delivery) 
 
 
 



 
 

N. Voucher payment for Roger Walkes for Contract# 2025WinLaC- 
WC-004 in the amount of $6,000.00 for 340 Cover Crops.  Payment 1 
of a 3-year contract. 
(Funding sources – FY23 WinLaC Watershed based funds $857.00 and 
FY25 WinLaC Watershed based funds $5,143.00) 

O. Voucher payment for Rachel Walkes for Contract# 2025WinLaC- 
WC-005 in the amount of $6,000.00 for 340 Cover Crops. Payment 1 of 
a 3-year contract. 
(Funding source – FY25 WinLac) 

 Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the
 Consent Agenda – Vouchers, Letters A. – O.  
 Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
 Opposed: None 
 Motion Carried 
  

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT – Board Action 
A. November 20, 2025, Meeting Minutes 

Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve the Secretary’s Report. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 

A. November District Financial Statements 
Included for your review 

B. Program Record – November 
The full spreadsheet was sent to the board in advance 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the Treasurer’s Report 
subject to Audit. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS  

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $115,050.06 - Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Payment of the Monthly 
Bills in the amount of $115,050.06. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 

Terri attended the Commissioners’ Meeting 12/16/2025. 
Reported that items discussed were Ambulance Service issues.  They want to share the 
cost increase.  Auditor and Assessor switching to new systems.  Terri gave brief report on 
the SWCD. 
 
 



 
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 

Attended the MASWCD Convention along with Sharleen and Lynn. 
BALMM Meeting.  Terri was the host.  Report about Sheila Harmes retirement. 
Meet quarterly, planning for 2026 - Kristen Dieterman, MPCA and Mike Cruze, MDA. 
Staff Evaluations with Sharleen and Lynn.  Will discuss in closed session. 
Working with Shawn Huth for handbook policy charges to prepare for PFML. 
Talking about converting leave system to PTO rather than accruing sick leave and 
annual leave separately 
NFWF reporting completed.  Reimbursement had been approved to pay. 
Transitioning Matt’s work to other staff. 
Started year-end reporting. 

D. NRCS Report – Christina Taylor – No report, just getting caught up. 
E. Natural Resources Technician Report– Katelyn Abts – 
F. Soil Health/Nutrient Management Tech Report – Deanna Pomije – In the packet 
G. Conservation Planning & Outreach Technician – Ella Jurgerson – In the packet 
H. BWSR Report – Dave Copeland 

• BWSR secured $805,000 for manure management work.  RFP out.  Application from TSA/7 
has been submitted for $805,000 to do feedlot, manure management and nutrient 
management work.  Approval in next month or so. 

• 2026 Buffer Law Grants were sent out.  Terri is working on work plan. $20,000 for staff 
responsibilities for Buffer Law. 

• RFP for 2026 Clean Water Fund.  Competitive grant. Early, to mid-February.  
 5–6-week window to submit applications. $27 million.  Portion for projects aimed 
at drinking water protection. 

• Ann Gunness is expecting a baby in mid-late March.  While she is on maternity 
leave, Dave will be covering her area also. 
Dave left at 9:15 am 

I. Other agencies –  
X. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas) 
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve June E. Ratz Trust Amendment# 3 to Contract# 24-CC-5 changing the Install by 

date to 5/01/2026 from 12/31/2025 – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve June E. Ratz Trust 
Amendment# 3 to Contract 24-CC-5 changing the install by date to 5/01/2026 from 
12/31/2025.   (After closer look at amendment, install by date is not  5/15/26) 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

B. Approve Katie M. Jacobson, CPA Engagement Letter for Auditing 2025 Financial 
Statements.  The quote is on last page of Engagement Letter.  The fee will be in the 
$5,500 to $7,500 range- (2024 was $5.583.79) - Board Action and Signature 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve Katie M. Jacobson, CPA 
Engagement Letter for Auditing 2025 Financial Statements.  The fee will be in the 
$5,500 to $7,500 range. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 



C. Set Meeting Dates/Times for 2026 – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve meeting 
dates as the fourth Thursday of the month at 8:15 am with the exception 
of months that conflict with holidays. Third Thursday for November 19 
and December 17, 2026 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

D. Approve Jary Holst Amendment# 2 to Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-001 to change the 
Install by date to 10/31/2026 from 11/30/2025 – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Jary Holst Amendment# 2 
to Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-001 to change the install by date to 10/31/2026 from 
11/30/2025. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

E. December RCPP Batching – Board Action  
2 contracts.  1 for No-Till 100 acres for 3 years and 1 for 100 Cover Crops for 3 years. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the December RCPP 
Batching. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

F. Watershed Based Continuous CRP Incentives – Board Action 
The Outdoor Heritage gave funds to BWSR to give to Watershed Based 
Comprehensive plans to use for Continuous CRP.  First come, first serve basis. 
WAGZ funding total was $7,200.00.  WinLaC funding total was 9,000.00. 
 

i.   WAGZ   $250.00 reenrolled and $500 for new incentive per contract. 
A. Richard Olson Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP2, $500.00 and Voucher 

payment for $500.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Richard Olson 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP2, for $500.00 and Voucher payment for 
$500.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

B. Julie Damman Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP9, $250.00 and Voucher 
payment for $250.00 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Julie Damman 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP9, for $250.00 and Voucher payment for 
$250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

C. Kenneth Moyer Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP10, $500.00 and Voucher 
payment for $500.00 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Kenneth Moyer 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP10, for $500.00 and Voucher payment for 
$500.00 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 
 
 



D. Kenneth Moyer Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP11, $500.00 and Voucher 
payment for the $500.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Kenneth Moyer 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP11, for $500.00 and Voucher payment for 
$500.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

E. Kenneth Moyer Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP12, $500.00 and Voucher 
payment for $500.00 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Kenneth Moyer 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP12, for $500.00 and Voucher payment for 
$500.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

F. Dale Wobbe Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP11, $250.00 and Voucher 
payment for $250.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Dale Wobbe 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP11, for $250.00 and Voucher payment for 
$250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

G. Dale Wobbe Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP13, $250.00 and Voucher 
payment of $250.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Dale Wobbe 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP13, for $250.00 and Voucher payment for 
$250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

H. Charles Bremer Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP8, $250.00 and 
Voucher payment for $250.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Charles Bremer 
Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP8, for $250.00 and Voucher payment for 
$250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

I. Scott Mighell IRR Trust Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP10, $250.00 and 
Voucher payment for $250.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Scott Mighell 
IRR Trust Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP10, for $250.00 and Voucher 
payment for $250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

J. Warren W. & Jennie Roberson Living Trust Contract# 2024-WAGZ- 
WC-CRP7, $250.00 and Voucher payment for 250.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Warren W. & 
Jennie Roberson Living Trust Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP7, for $250.00 
and Voucher payment for $250.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 



K. Adam Warthesen Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP1, $500.00 and 
Voucher payment for $500.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Adam 
Warthesen Contract# 2024-WAGZ-WC-CRP1, for $500.00 and Voucher 
payment for $500.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 
 

ii.        WinLaC         $1,000.00 flat rate per contract 
A. William Hager Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP6, $1,000.00 and 

Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve William 
Hager Contract# 2025-WinLaC-Wab-CRP6, for $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

B. Ann Meurer Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP1, $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for the $$1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Ann 
Meurer Contract# 2025-WinLaC-Wab-CRP1, for $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

C. Mary Tentis Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP7, $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Mary 
Tentis Contract# 2025-WinLaC-Wab-CRP7, for $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

D. Roger Walkes Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP2, $1,000.00 and 
Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Roger 
Walkes Contract# 2025-WinLaC-Wab-CRP2, for $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

E. Steve Schumacher Contract# 2025WinLab-Wab-CRP5, $1,000.00 and 
Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Steve 
Schumacher Contract# 2025-WinLaC-Wab-CRP5, for $1,000.00 and 
Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F. Graner Farm Family LLP Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP3, $1,000.00 
and Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Graner 
Farm Family LLP Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP3, for $1,000.00 and 
Voucher payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 

G. Glen Borgen Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP8, for $1,000.00 and 
Voucher payment for $1,000.00 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Glen 
Borgen Contract# 2025WinLaC-Wab-CRP8, for $1,000.00 and Voucher 
payment for $1,000.00. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Motion Carried 
 

iii. Approve payments for any eligible contracts before the end of the year.  
Information will be provided. – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve payments for any 
additional eligible continuous CRP contract and vouchers before the end of the 
year. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
iv. Board Reports 

A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P (WAGZ)– Dag 
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Dag 
E. County Board Meeting – Sharleen 

 
 Upcoming Events: 

i. Thursday, December 25, 2025, Christmas Day – Office Closed 
ii. Thursday, January 1, 2026, New Year’s Day – Office Closed 

iii. January 1, 2026, Paid Leave Law goes into effect. 
iv. Monday, January 19, 2026, Martin Luther King Jr. Day-Office Closed 
v.  

 
v. Motion to Recess Regular Meeting and go in to Closed Session – Board Action 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to Recess Regular Meeting and go in 
to Closed Session. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



vi. Closed Session  
A. Personnel Review 

i. Katelyn Abts 
ii. Deanna Pomije 

iii. Ella Jurgerson 
iv. Sue Cerwinske 

 
B. District Manager – Terri Peters personnel review and discussion. 
C. Adoptions of 2026 Wage Scale 

 
vii. Motion to Reopen Regular Meeting – Board Action 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to Reopen the Regular Meeting. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

viii. Approval of the following – Board Action 
A. Adoption of 2026 Wage Scale 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve adoption of 
the 2026 Wage Scale. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
B. Approve the Employee Evaluations 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the Employee 
Evaluations. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
C. Approve 2026 salary recommendations 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the 2026 salary 
recommendations due to favorable reviews.  Katelyn, Deanna, Sue, Terri are 
eligible to move up one step.  Ella will move up a step before the end of her 
probation period. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
ix. Adjourn – Board Action 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to adjourn the meeting at 11:00 am. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: 
Motion Carried 
 

     Respectively Submitted By: 
 
     
     ___________________________ 
     Seth Tentis, Secretary 



















Katelyn Abts – December 2026 Board Report
Programs

Wabasha Well Inventory

 More well inventory forms mailed in since last month
 Working on assigning billion numbers to wells
 Made a Private Well Owner Notice featuring articles about Well Sealing, Well 

Inventory and Elevated levels of Manganese in the area – yet to be mailed

WAGZ (Greater Zumbro)

 New tracker up and running – projects entered
 1 woodland stewardship plan done but waiting on technical assistance provider 

sign off on payment voucher

Conservation Contracts

 1 612 (Tree and shrub establishment) project in the planning stage

Continuous CRP Payment Incentive Contracts – Lessar Sams Outdoor Heritage 
Council

 Last incentive payments mailed out to producers

RCPP

 1 project with 612 (tree and shrub establishment) and 327 (conservation cover) in 
the planning stage

 1 project with 612, 327 and 666 (forest stand improvement) in the planning stage
 1 project with 327 in the planning stage

Envirothon

 St. Felix has expressed interest in sending a junior team to Envirothon 2026

Other

Tree Sale

 4,975 trees, 455 tree tubes and 50 tree mats sold since the sale began



Report to the Wabasha SWCD Board – Jan. 22, 2026           

Deanna Pomije, Soil Health Nutrient Management Specialist

Nutrient Management Work:

 The Comprehensive Nutrient Management Plan (CNMP) 390 acres for Ted & Colby 
Mehrkens for EQIP, collaborating with Kate Bruss, TSA and reviewer Aaron Janz, 
NRCS.  Made revisions to their field nutrient budgets and rotational NMP.  NRCS 
reviewing final plan.  Final approval should be pending shortly.  I plan to also complete a 
Manure Management Plan for them as required by MPCA & their annual 2026 manure 
management plan.

Soil Health Work:

Cover Crops:

Working to finalize the 2025 cover crop certification for a few final contracts.  One 
processed this month, another planned for Feb. and a final one in spring.  Working to 
compile 3 completed cover crop plans for Aaron Janz, NRCS to review for requesting job 
approval authority, JAA.

Continuing with 2026 cover crop planning and contracting as people are willing to plan 
ahead. This involves discussions with producers on their operation specifics and how 
cover crops fit into them to improve their soil health.  USDA compliance reviews and 
NRCS program duplicate checks.  Developing a contract and seeding plan.  Working 
with clients to determine fields to be planted and make decisions on seed mixes.  

Year End Reporting:
Uploaded eligibility/ practice/ payment documents for our 23 RCPP contracts that have 
been paid out on already.  These are all cover crop contracts; 8 of which are fully 
completed.  The remaining are multi-year contracts.  Uploaded practice certification 
documents onto the WinLaC and WAGZ shared sites.  Learned the new mapping 
reporting process for WAGZ and started reporting there.
 

2026 RCPP contract planning:

o Jan. RCPP batching for 2026 – 4 applications in development, cover crops & 
conservation cover

  Batching to be determined

Outreach & Meetings:

MDA Grant remote meeting on 1/14 to discuss suggestions to improve the new MPCA 
manure management online software.  George Schwint, MPCA, was present to hear these 
suggestions and discuss if some fixes could be incorporated into the tool.  Some concerns 
were just bugs and others were considerable fixes that may take some time.  They are 2 



years out on incorporating new things into the tool.  MPCA is still working with NRCS to 
incorporate their nutrient management requirements into the tool.  This is expected to take a 
while.  

Winona SWCD is planning March 12 at their tech. college to host training for producers 
wanting to do their own manure management plans using the new MPCA online software.  
I’m planning to send out another postcard to targeted livestock producers on this Winona 
training and offer my assistance in nutrient management.  

Coffee ‘n Conservation, coordination with Ella:

Next gathering is planned for Tue. Jan. 27 @ 11:30 am at the Blacktop Bar in Elgin – 
Topic:  Manure Management

o 1 producer attended our Dec. 29 gathering, low attendance possibly due to 
weather and the Holidays. 

o 28 total to-date new producers / landowners in attendance 
o Great conversation around a variety of conservation topics: erosion, nutrient 

management, cover crops, tillage, weed control & manure composting.
o Flyer review, call producers for attendance



January Board Report   

Ella Jurgerson- Conservation Planning and Outreach Tech  

Soil Health:  

- Start work on 2026 Cover Crop projects that are continuing from 2025  
- I submitted my request for JAA in cover crops to Aaron Janz so worked on compiling 

my documentation for him, I was then granted Level 2 JAA for cover crops, which will 
give me authority to sign off on many contracts we get here at the SWCD for cover 
crops. Me having my JAA will help speed along the planning process for cover crops 
here and get conservation on the ground faster for producers. 

- Have been doing training with Dean Thomas for cover crops at least once a month, 
learning more about species selection for various resource concerns and planning 
for specific resource concerns and goals.  

- Worked on a No-Till contract for RCPP that will start this spring  

Outreach:  

-started planning for 5th grade conservation day and conservation cube drop off. 
Have been coordinating with area school for what day will work best for them for 
both conservation day and cube drop off. Right now, it sounds like May 13th is going 
to be the best option for everyone for conservation day.  

-Planning our next coffee and conservation and informing area farmers of the event, 
the topic for January is Manure Management  

-Worked on Jan/Feb Newsletter which has now been sent out  

Reporting:  

-have been working on final reporting for 2025. I have been doing pollution 
reductions for cover crops and then entering on BWSR’s “Elink” which keeps track of 
our grants.  

-All cover crop contracts have been paid out besides one so I have been able to get 
the final figure of pollution reductions, and the impact cover crops had this year in 
our county, that is attached to this report. Pollution reduction values are acquired 
through a calculator which is based on HUC 12 level watersheds within the county. I 
then used various online calculators to try and make a comparison of the pollution 
reduction values to things we may be more familiar with in the agricultural industry; 
these are all approximate figures.   

 



 

Training: 

- I continue to work on my Conservation planner 1 training by doing online modules, I 
am 75% complete with the online modules. Once these modules are completed, I 
will do a 1-week course in July to get my certification.  

Wetland Conservation Act: 

-A good amount of my time has been spent working on a restoration order for an 
ongoing wetland violation.  

-Spent time working on WCA application for the Wabasha barge facility and 
communicating with the City of Wabasha regarding that application.  



2025 WABASHA COUNTY
COVER CROP RECAP

In 2025 there was
4,000 Acres of
cover crops planted
that were enrolled in
one of our programs 

Of the cover crops planted 28
contracts were for a single
species plantings and 26
were for a muti-species
plantings 

in 2025 2,294.19 tons of
sediment was reduced
from entering local
waterways by
implementation of cover
crops

Of the planted Acre’s
3,819.80 Acres were
planted in vulnerable
groundwater areas 

In 2025 26,232.5 Ibs of Nitrogen
was reduced from entering  local
waterways by implementation of
cover crops

In 2025 2,678.49 Ibs of
Phosphorus was reduced from
entering  local waterways by
implementation of cover crops

Sediment 

Groundwater

35,275 Ibs of Nitrate was reduced
from entering groundwater by
implementation of cover cropsIn 2025 we worked with

42 Producers to plan
cover crop plantings



HOW DO THESE VALUES
COMPARE TO COMMON AG

MATERIALS? 

26,232.5 Ibs of
nitrogen is equivalent
to approximately
57,000 Ibs of Urea 

2,678.49 Ibs of
Phosphorus is
equivalent to about
292.1 tons of
stockpiled feedlot
manure or 1,533.54
tons of Dairy Manure 

2,294.19 tons of
sediment is
equivalent to 140-
190 dump truck
loads 

35,275 Ibs of Nitrate is
equivlant to about
78,389 pounds of
commercial ammonium
nitrate fertilizer

The above comparisons were obtained through use of various online calculator tools and are
just an estimate for the equivalency of nitrogen, phosphorus, sediment, and nitrate values to
products used in agricultural practice.  These comparisons are a helpful way to visualize the

impact that cover crops can have on water quality and soil health. 

































Resolution 01222026-1 

A Resolution for E-Link Financial Reporting 

2026 
Whereas: 

E-Link Financial Reporting is due on all grants funded through the Board of Water and Soil 
Resources, and 

Whereas:  

These reports require signatures of duly authorized persons of the Board of Supervisors, and 

Whereas:  

The timing of these financials does not always allow the availability of the duly authorized 
member of the Board of Supervisors to timely sign the Financial Reports,  

Therefore, 

Be it resolved: 

That the Board of Supervisors grants signing and submittal authority on the E-Link Financial 
Reporting to the District Manager, and 

Be it further resolved: 

That this authority be effective until revoked by the Board of Supervisors, and 

Be it finally resolved: 

That the financial reports signed by the District Manager be approved as part of the next 
regularly scheduled board meeting of the Wabasha SWCD Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

____________________________    _________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

 



Resolution 01222026-2 

 A Resolution to Designate the Official Newspaper 

For Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District 

2026 

 
Whereas: 

The Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) must designate an official newspaper for 
each year, therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD designate the same newspaper as Wabasha County, and 

Be it finally resolved: 

That the official newspaper for 2026 be The Lake City Graphic. 

 

____________________________    _________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

 

  



Resolution 01222026-3 

A Resolution to Designate the Official Bank Depositories 
for Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District for 

2026 
Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) must annually designate official bank 
depositories for official Wabasha SWCD funds, therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the official depository for checking be WNB Financial (Formerly First State Bank), of Wabasha, and 

Be it further resolved: 

That the official depositories for Money Market Savings be WNB Financial, Wabasha, MN; Bank of Alma, 
Wabasha, MN; and Peoples State Bank, Plainview, MN. 

 

_____________________________    ________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

  







 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 01222026-5 

A Resolution to Set Board Supervisor Per Diem and 
Mileage Rates for 2026 

Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) is required to annually set the per diem and 
mileage rates, and  

Whereas: 

Maximum amounts for such rates are mandated by state statute (M.S. 103C.315 Subd 4), therefore 

Be it resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD set the 2026 per diem and mileage rates at the mandated maximum allowable 
level of $125/day per diem and $.725 /mile (IRS Rate) for Board Supervisors 

 

__________________________     _____________ 

Board Chair       Date   

 

 

 



BWSR Grants Signature Authority 

Wabasha SWCD 
Resolution 01222026-6 

  
  

Whereas: BWSR has changed the way Grant Agreements are signed. 
 
Whereas:  Terri Peters is listed as grant manager of the BWSR grants. 
 
Whereas: The goal is to process the grants in a timely manner. 
 
Whereas: Signature authority was approved at the October 26,2023 board meeting and 
  
Therefore: The board approves that the District Manager have signature authority for 
grants agreements as they come in. BWSR agreements will be provided at the next 
regular board meeting of the Wabasha SWCD. 

 
 
      _____________________         _____________ 

Board Chair Date 



Amendment to Resolution 

01222026-7 

Contracts, Amendments and 

Extension Signature Authority 

Policy Wabasha SWCD 
  

In the event that an existing contract that will expire or a new contract that needs to be 
signed between scheduled board meetings due to time requirements, the District 
Manager and either the Board Chair, or Vice Chair will have the authority to sign the new 
contract or extension on behalf of the Wabasha SWCD, with ratification of the new 
contract or amendment to extend the contract being made at the next regular board 
meeting of the Wabasha SWCD. This includes any non-controversial contracts and 
amendments. 

This policy is designed to reduce the expense and requirement to schedule and hold a 
special board meeting for non-controversial items. 

This policy applies to any non-controversial contracts and amendments that need to be 
signed due to time requirements.  Such as but not limited to new Cover Crop, Well 
Sealing and Nutrient Management contracts and non-controversial amendments to 
extend the contract end date.         

         

Whereas this resolution is to give authorization for signature authority for any time 
sensitive non-controversial contracts and amendments, such as but not limited to cover 
crops, well-sealing, nutrient management and time sensitive non-controversial contracts 

 
 
 
      _____________________         _____________ 

Board Chair Date 



AgBMP Loan Applications 

Signature Authority policy 

Wabasha SWCD 
Resolution 01222026-8 

  
  

In the event that a new AgBMP Loan Application is presented between a scheduled 
board meeting, The District Manager will have the authority to sign the application on 
behalf of the Wabasha SWCD, with ratification on the Consent Agenda at the next 
regular board meeting of the Wabasha SWCD. 

This policy is designed to reduce the expense and requirement to schedule and hold a 
special board meeting for non-controversial items. 

This policy applies to AgBMP Loan Applications up to $200,000.00. 

Whereas signature authority was approved originally at the January 26, 2023 board 
meeting and 

Whereas this is a resolution to support that board meeting decision for signature 
authority for AgBMP Loan Applications. 

 
 
 
      _____________________         _____________ 

Board Chair Date 



Resolution 01222026-9 

A Resolution Designating Signature Authority for 

 Terri Peters, District Manager for SWCD  

2026 
Whereas: 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) board designates Terri Peters signature authority 
to sign the RCPP batching before the monthly board meeting.  

Be it resolved: 

That the Wabasha SWCD Board of Supervisors grant signature authority to Terri Peters to sign the RCPP 
batching before the monthly board meetings. 

Be it finally resolved: 

That this resolution remains in effect only until any of the above-named signatories are no longer 
associated with Wabasha SWCD 

 

 

 

_____________________________    ________________ 

Board Chair       Date 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION TO TERMINATE THE WHITEWATER JOINT POWERS BOARD 
AND TERMINATE AND WITHDRAW FROM THE WHITEWATER JOINT POWERS BOARD AGREEMENT

I. WHEREAS,  the counties of Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona, Minnesota, and each of 
their Soil and Water Conservation Districts entered into the Whitewater Joint Powers 
Board Agreement on August 12, 1987, as amended June 6, 1989, May 9, 1995, and 
February 28, 2019 (the “JPB Agreement”); and

II. WHEREAS, the JPB Agreement established the Whitewater Joint Powers Board for the 
purpose of carrying forward the Whitewater River Watershed Project’s mission to 
nurture a land stewardship ethic amongst those that live, work, and recreate in the 
watershed. The project focuses on improving water quality, reducing sedimentation and 
flooding, and improving plant and animal habitat; and

III. WHEREAS, under the JPB Agreement, Olmsted, Wabasha, and Winona counties and 
their Soil and Water Conservation Districts have successfully cooperated for over 38 
years to promote the Whitewater River Watershed Project’s mission; and

IV. WHEREAS, the parties now recognize that the State of Minnesota has moved towards 
the “One Watershed, One Plan” (1W1P) as the primary framework for supporting local 
water planning efforts, conservation implementation, and funding that will carry 
forward the mission of the Whitewater River Watershed Project; and

V. WHEREAS, regional grant opportunities for the Whitewater Joint Powers Board are 
diminishing, while local watershed groups and other regional organizations are 
increasingly in a better position to receive grants and carry out the activities related to 
local water protection that support the mission of the Whitewater River Watershed 
Project; and 

VI. WHEREAS, the parties to the JPB Agreement have determined that, due to these 
changing circumstances, the Watershed Project’s mission can now best be achieved by 
terminating the Whitewater Joint Powers Board and terminating and withdrawing from 
the JPB Agreement so that available resources can better align with the opportunities 
available under the 1W1P framework; and

VII. WHEREAS, Paragraph I(E) of the JPB Agreement provides that, “the Whitewater Joint 
Powers Board and this Agreement shall remain in existence until there is an affirmative 
vote to terminate existence by two-thirds (2/3) of the then-member Counties and 
Districts;” and

VIII. WHEREAS, at the November 25, 2025 meeting, the Joint Powers Board Members 
present, representing the three Counties and three Soil and Water Conservation 
Districts, voted 4 - 0 in support of terminating the Joint Powers Board and terminating 
the JPB Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Winona County Board of CommissionersWabasha County 
Soil & Water Conservation District supports and adopts the Whitewater Joint Powers Board’s 
recommendation at its November 25, 2025, meeting that each County and Soil and Water Conservation 



District who is a party to the JPB Agreement, vote to terminate the Whitewater Joint Powers Board and 
terminate and withdraw from the JPB Agreement upon the following terms:

1. The parties each agree they shall cooperate in good faith to wind down the activities of the Joint 
Powers Board in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations.  

2. Pursuant to Paragraph F of the JPB Agreement, the winding down of the Joint Powers Board 
shall include allocating any unexpended funds and surplus property to the JPB Agreement-
parties in a ratio consistent with each party’s contributions.  These allocations will be made by 
the Whitewater Joint Powers Board members after all financial transactions are completed, such 
as a final audit.

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District

CERTIFICATION

State of Minnesota

Soil and Water Conservation District, Wabasha County

Lynn Zabel, Board Chair

I do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution is a true and correct copy of a resolution presented to 
and adopted by the Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District at a duly authorized meeting 
thereof held on ________________











 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE WABASHA COUNTY  

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
AND 

OLMSTED COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATIONJ DISTRICT 
 

This AGREEMENT is between the Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation 
District (hereinafter referred to as "the District"), 611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10, Wabasha, 
MN 55981 and Olmsted County Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Subrecipient"). 
 
I. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this AGREEMENT is to clarify the roles and responsibilities of the 
parties regarding the delivery of the Minnesota Agricultural Water Quality 
Certification Program (hereinafter referred to as ‘MAWQCP" or the Project") 
made possible by the State of Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 

 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND SPECIFIC DUTIES  
 

The District has agreed to provide funding to the Subrecipient for 
Implementation of the Project. The Subrecipient will complete the duties 
described as follows: Employment & Supervision of a full-time qualified 
Area Certification Specialist, including related items such as wages & 
benefits, motor pool expenses, printer & equipment, office space, and 
internet. The Subrecipient will be open to the addition of new staff 
should there be a need to accomplish the project workload and 
funding is available by the District. Subject to approval by the 
authorized representative of the District, the Subrecipient may modify 
these duties through a written addendum to this Agreement which is 
signed by both parties. 
The Area Certification Specialist position duties will include but not 
be limited to the following: Provide training to local conservation staff 
on use of the assessment tool; Provide leadership in Southeast 
Minnesota and the State for program implementation and training in 
new and existing policies. Ensure consistency and compliance of State 
(MDA) program policy and implementation; Meet with 
applicants/producers to gather required data to perform the 
requirements of the assessment tool and field verification; Review, 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 2 

sign, track and upload to the MDA all certifications performed in SE 
MN prior to certification; Coordinate with all local, regional and state 
support staff in promotion of MAWQCP; Assist with outreach to 
regional partners (agricultural stakeholders); Solicit feedback from 
local conservation staff and landowners participating in MAWQCP to 
improve the certification process; Train and supervise new 
Conservation Corp personnel, intermittent MDA staff and dedicated 
SWCD staff currently funded by the Program; Participation in 
regional educational and promotional activities; Promote, coordinate, 
and provide all required producer materials and data to NRCS for 
implementation of the RCPP Ag Certainty EQIP Funding Program. 
Promote, review, verify, track, and submittal to MDA all required 
documentation for producers seeking funding through the 
Department of Agricultures' MAWQCP Grant Program; Promote, 
review, field verify and track Certifications provided by Land O Lakes 
(Sustain Program) and submittal of these to the MDA; Perform 
required audits of previously certified farms and provide 
documentation to MDA of compliance or needed amendments. 
 
The services provided under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner 
consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of 
the Subrecipient' s profession currently practicing under similar conditions 

 

III. PAYMENT TERMS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

A. REPORTING. The Subrecipient will submit reports to the District 
documenting progress toward completion of the project at a minimum of 
quarterly or more frequently if requested by the District. The District will 
provide the Subrecipient a format for all reports approximately one month 
prior to the date on which reports are due. 

B. TERM. The Subrecipient may expend grant funds toward completion of the 
Project between the dates of January 1, 2026 and December 31, 2027, or 
until all work under this Agreement is completed and payments made, 
whichever occurs first, unless earlier terminated by law or according to the 
provisions of this Agreement.  Funds can be expected retroactively within 
the dates above regardless of the final signing date of this agreement by all 
parties. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 3 

C.  AMOUNT. During the term of this agreement, the Subrecipient may bill the 
District for up to $291,200.00 for ACS Salary and Benefits, $10,000 for 
ACS Travel, and $7,000 for ACS Office, Communication, & Supplies per 
attached budget. 

D.  PAYMENT SCHEDULE. Upon execution of Agreement the Subrecipient 
may present quarterly itemized invoices to the District for work actually 
performed and the supporting documentation. 

Upon acceptance of the invoiced work by the State's Authorized 
Representative, and upon receipt of payment from the MDA, and within five 
working days of receipt of payment, the District will process reimbursement 
to the Subrecipient 

Invoices for payment will be sent at a minimum of monthly to: 
Terri Peters, District Manager 

Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651)560-2044 

Email: terri.peters@mn.nacdnet.net, or his/her successor. 
 

E. CANCELLATION AND REVOCATION   If, upon review the District 
determines that the Subrecipient has not made satisfactory progress toward 
performing the agreed upon services and duties, the District may cancel the  
Agreement.  In the event of cancellation, the Subrecipient is entitled to 
payment for work satisfactorily performed up to the date of cancellation.  

  
IV. CONTRACT CLAUSES 

A. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT MATERIALS. All materials prepared or 
developed by the Subrecipient hereunder, including documents, notes, 
reports, data, and samples shall become the property of the District when 
prepared, whether delivered to the District or not, and shall be delivered to 
the District upon request. The District will be responsible for responding to 
any data practices requests pertaining to this data. 

B. CHANGES. The District may at any time issue written directions requiring 
additional work within the Work Plan and any amendments thereto, or 
directing the addition of, omission of, or variation in Work. If such direction 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 4 

results in a material change in the amount or character of Work, Subrecipient 
will prepare a scope of Work and cost estimate and forward it to the District's 
representative. The District may issue the Subrecipient notice to proceed with 
this change or request an alteration in the scope of Work, or not authorize the 
Work. 

C. INDEMNIFY OR HOLD HARMLESS. Subrecipient shall indemnify the 
District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents against damages, 
penalties, costs, or expenses incurred in connection with any alleged violation 
of any federal, state, or local law or regulation regulating the Work performed 
hereunder or any part thereof. Subrecipient agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents against 
and from loss, claims, or suits, including costs and attorneys’ fees, for, or on 
account of injury, bodily or otherwise, or death, of persons, or damage to or 
destruction of property belonging to the District or others arising out of the 
negligent performance of the Work hereunder by the Subrecipient. 

Subrecipient shall, in no event, be liable for loss or damage attributable to the 
District or its representatives or agents. Subrecipient's liability shall be 
limited by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466 or other 
applicable law. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit either party from 
asserting against third parties any defenses or immunities (Including common 
law, statutory and constitutional) it may have or be construed to create a basis 
for a claim or suit when none would otherwise exist. 

D. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. The Subrecipient shall purchase, 
provide and maintain, at its own expense, such insurance as will protect the 
Subrecipient from claims set forth below. 

Proof of such insurance shall be furnished to WABASHA COUNTY SOIL 
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT prior to the commencement 
of any work and shall be maintained throughout the life of this contract and 
shall be evidenced by the carrier's certificates, filed with the WABASHA 
COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT. 

The Subrecipient shall supply the WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT with a list of subcontractors and 
shall verify and take responsibility for the subcontractor's proof of insurance 

Insurance shall be in force the first day of the Contract. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 5 

Insurance shall not be canceled, limited in scope of coverage or non-renewed 
until after Thirty (30) days written notice has been given to 

Olmsted County SWCD 
1188 50th Street SE 

Rochester, MN 55904 
 

It is agreed that any insurance maintained by the WABASHA SOIL AND 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT will not contribute with, insurance 
provided by this policy. 

The Subrecipient shall not commence work until the Subrecipient has 
obtained required insurance and where labor and material are involved, filed 
an acceptable certificate of insurance with the WABASHA COUNTY SOIL 
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT. All insurance policies shall 
be open to inspection by the WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, and copies of policies shall be submitted to 
the WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT upon written request. The WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT is added as an additional insured. 
The insurance certificate shall specify "Wabasha County Soil and Water 
Conservation District" and the project name. If Subrecipient is a public 
entity, Subrecipient may be permitted to provide proof of comparable self-
insurance coverage in lieu of conventional private insurance coverage. 

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY 

A single or combined limit occurrence based general liability insurance 
policy, which shall Include a broad form comprehensive liability 
endorsement and a contractual endorsement, which shall include the 
following coverages at a minimum: 

Bodily Injury/Property Damage:    $   500,000 per person  
                                                        $1,500,000 per occurrence 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 
 
A single or combined limit auto liability insurance policy for all owned, non-
owned and hired vehicles, if any, using the provision of services under this 
contract, which shall include the following coverages at a minimum: 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 6 

Bodily Injury/Property Damage $   500,000 per person 
                                 $1,500,000 per occurrence 

WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S 
LIABILITY INSURANCE 

Subrecipient shall procure and maintain a policy that at least meets 
Minnesota statutory minimum and is covered for work in Minnesota. 

The above subparagraphs establish minimum insurance requirements, and it 
is the sole responsibility of the Subrecipient to purchase and maintain 
additional insurance that may be necessary in connection with this contract. 
 

E.  NONASSIGNMENT. Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement nor 
delegate or subcontract any of the Work to be performed without the Board’s 
written consent. If assignment, delegation, or subcontract work is with such 
consent, it shall not relieve the Subrecipient from its responsibility for the 
performance of any of its obligations hereunder. 

   
F.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the final 

expression of the parties' agreement, and the complete and exclusive 
statement of the terms agreed upon. This Agreement supersedes all prior 
negotiations, understandings, agreements and representations. There are no 
oral or written understandings, agreements or representations not specified 
herein. 

G. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. Subrecipient is an 
Independent Contractor. Nothing contained m this Agreement is intended 
or should be construed as creating the relationship of co-partners or joint 
ventures between the parties. Subrecipient will be responsible for any 
federal or state taxes applicable to this payment. No tenure or any rights or 
benefits, including workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, 
medical care, sick leave, vacation leave, severance pay, Public 
Employment Retirement Association or other benefits available to 
Subrecipient employees, shall accrue to WABASHA SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT or its employees performing services under 
this Agreement. 

H.    WORKER HEALTH, SAFETY, AND TRAINING. Subrecipient shall 
be solely responsible for the health and safety of its employees in 
connection with the work performed under this Contract. Subrecipient shall 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 7 

make arrangements to ensure the health and safety of all subcontractors and 
other persons who may perform work in connection with this Contract. 
Subrecipient shall ensure all personnel of Subrecipient and subcontractors 
are properly trained and supervised and, when applicable, duly licensed or 
certified appropriate to the tasks engaged in under this Contract. 
Subrecipient shall comply with federal, state and local occupational safety 
and health standards, regulations and rules promulgated pursuant to the 
Occupational Health and Safety Act which are applicable to the work to be 
performed by Subrecipient 

I.  LEGAL COMPLIANCE. Non-Discrimination. During the performance 
of this Contract, the Subrecipient shall not unlawfully discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, 
religion, national origin, sex, marital status, familial status disability, public 
assistance, age, sexual orientation, or local human rights commission 
activity The Subrecipient will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without unlawful discrimination because of their race, color, creed, 
religion, national origin, sex, marital status, familial status disability, public 
assistance, age, sexual orientation, or local human rights commission 
activity. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
Subrecipient agrees to post notices in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, which set forth the provisions 
of this nondiscrimination clause. 

The Subrecipient will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, creed, 
religion, national origin, sex, marital status, familial status disability, public 
assistance, age, sexual orientation, or local human rights commission 
activity. No funds received under this Contract shall be used to provide 
religious or sectarian training or services The Subrecipient shall comply 
with any applicable federal or state law regarding nondiscrimination in the 
delivery of any contracted products or services to the WABASHA 
COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, its 
employees and agents and members of the public whom it serves 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 8 

Subrecipient and WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT shall comply with all applicable federal and 
state statutes and regulations as well as local ordinances now in effect or 
hereafter adopted. 

J.  DATA PRIVACY. For purposes of this Contract all data created, 
collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by 
Subrecipient in the performance of this Contract is subject to the 
requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. 
Chapter 13 and the Minnesota Rules implementing the Act now in force or 
hereafter adopted as well as the federal laws on data privacy. If 
Subrecipient is performing a governmental function as defined in Minn 
Stat. Section 13 05, Subd. 1 l as part of its contract duties and it is not a 
governmental entity, it must comply with those requirements as if it were a 
governmental entity. The remedies Minn. Stat. Section 13.08 apply to the 
Subrecipient. Subrecipient does not have a duty to provide access to public 
data to the public if the public data are available from the WABASHA 
SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, except as required by 
the terms of this Contract. All subcontracts shall contain the same or similar 
data practices compliance requirements. 

K.  BUSINESS RECORDS. Subrecipient shall keep such business records 
pursuant to this Agreement as would be kept by a reasonably prudent 
practitioner of Subrecipient’s profession. Subrecipient shall maintain such 
records for at least 6 years from the date services or payment were last 
provided or made or longer if any audit in progress requires a longer 
retention period. All accounting records shall be kept in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices. WABASHA COUNTY SOIL 
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT shall have the right to audit 
and review all such documents and records at any time during 
Subrecipient's regular business hours or upon reasonable notice These 
records are subject to examination, duplication, transcription and audit by 
WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT and either the Legislative or State Auditor of the State of 
Minnesota pursuant to Minnesota Statute 16C.05, subd 5. Such evidences 
are also subject to review by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
or a duly authorized representative, if federal funds are used for any work 
under this Contract 

L.  FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be held responsible for delay or 
failure to perform caused by fire, flood, epidemic, strikes, riot, acts of God, 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 9 

unusually severe weather, terrorism, war, acts of public authorities other 
than WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT or delays or defaults caused by public carriers which was 
beyond a party's reasonable control, provided the defaulting party gives 
notice as soon as possible to the other party of the inability to perform. 

M. WAIVER. The failure of WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT or Subrecipient to enforce one or more of 
the terms or conditions of the Contract or to exercise any of its rights or 
privileges, or the waiver by either party of any breach of such terms or 
conditions, shall not be construed as thereafter waiving any such terms, 
conditions, rights, or privileges, and the same shall continue and remain in 
force and effect as if no waiver had occurred. 

N.  NOTICES. All official notices shall be sufficiently given when delivered 
or mailed, certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at their respective 
places of business as set forth below or at a place designated hereafter in 
writing by the parties. 

For the WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 
Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation District 
611 Broadway Ave., Suite 10 
Wabasha, MN 55981 

 
          For the Subrecipient: 
         Olmsted County Public Works 

Purchasing 
2122 Campus Drive SE, Suite 200 
Rochester, MN 55904 

 
O.  INTERPRETATION, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE. All contractual 

agreements shall be subject to, governed by, and construed and interpreted 
solely according to the laws of the State of Minnesota. Both parties hereby 
consent and submit to the jurisdiction of the appropriate courts of 
Minnesota or of the United States having jurisdiction in Minnesota for 
adjudication of any suit or cause of action arising under or in connection 
with the contract documents, or the performance of such contract, and 
agrees that any such suit or cause of action may be brought in any such 
court. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 10 

P.  SEVERABILITY. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this 
contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in 
conflict with any law. the validity of the remaining terms and provisions 
shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 
construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the particular term 
or provision held to be invalid. 

Q.   AGREEMENT TO MEDIATE DISPUTES. In the event that any dispute 
arises between the parties in relation to this Agreement, or out of this 
Agreement, and the dispute is not resolved by negotiation, the parties may 
agree to submit the dispute to mediation. The parties further agree that their 
participation in mediation is a condition precedent to any party pursuing 
any other available remedy in relation to the dispute. 

 
Any party to the dispute may give written notice to the other party of his or 
her desire to commence mediation, and a mediation session must take place 
within [30] days after the date that such nonce is given. 

The parties must jointly appoint a mutually acceptable mediator. If the 
parties are unable to agree upon the appointment of a mediator within [7] 
days after a party has given notice of a desire to mediate the dispute, any 
party may apply to any organization or person agreed to by the parties in 
writing, for appointment of a mediator. 

The parties further agree to share equally the costs of the mediation, which 
costs not include costs incurred by a party for representation by counsel 
at the mediation. 

R.  DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

The District or Subrecipient may terminate this agreement at any time, with 
or without cause, upon 30 days' written notice to the other party. 

Either party by written notice of default (including breach of contract) to 
the other party may terminate the whole or any part of this agreement if the 
other party fails to perform any of the provisions of this contract, and after 
receipt of written notice from the first party, fails to correct such failures 
within a period of 10 days or such longer period as the first party may 
authorize in writing after receipt of notice from the first party specifying 
such failure 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9



 

 
611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 

Wabasha, MN 55981 
Phone: (651) 565-4673             

 

Agreement WAB-SWCD2026-MAWQCP 11 

S.  MERGER CLAUSE. This agreement constitutes the final expression of 
the parties' agreement, and the complete and exclusive statement of the 
terms agreed upon. This agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings, agreements, and representations. There are no oral or 
written understandings, agreements or representations not specified herein. 
Furthermore, no waiver, consent, modification, or change of terms of this 
agreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both 
parties. Such waiver, consent, modification, or change shall be effective. 

V. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE DATE 

This agreement is effective upon execution by all parties. 

Approved and accepted for: 

 

FOR THE WABASHA COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ __________________ 
Board Chair, Wabasha County SWCD  Date 
  
 
  
 
 
FOR THE SUBRECIPIENT 

 
_______________________________   ___________________ 
Tony Hill                Date 
Deputy Administrator 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF2B0619-2B53-4C9D-93CC-82543000FBF9

1/7/2026 | 5:06 PM CST











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Pending contract signatures, technical sign-off and eligibility reviews 

 

_________________________________________________________     __________________________________ 

Board Chair Signature          Date 
Notes on Approval: 


	01222026 -6 BWSR Docusigh authority policy.pdf
	BWSR Grants Signature Authority Wabasha SWCD

	01222026-7 Signature authority Non-Controversial.pdf
	Amendment to Resolution 01222026-7
	Contracts, Amendments and Extension Signature Authority Policy Wabasha SWCD

	01222026-8  AgBMP Resolution.pdf
	AgBMP Loan Applications Signature Authority policy Wabasha SWCD




